
 
 

 
eastsussex.gov.uk 

LEADER AND LEAD MEMBER FOR STRATEGIC 
MANAGEMENT AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 
DECISIONS to be made by the Leader and Lead Member for Strategic Management and Economic 
Development, Councillor Keith Glazier 
 
FRIDAY, 3 NOVEMBER 2023 AT 2.00 PM  
 
REMOTE MEETING VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
1.   Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Member on 24 October 2023  (Pages 3 - 4) 

 
2.   Disclosure of Interests   

Disclosure by all Members present of personal interests in matters on the agenda, the 
nature of any interest and whether the Members regard the interest as prejudicial under 
the terms of the Code of Conduct.  
 

3.   Urgent items   
Notification of any items which the Lead Member considers urgent and proposes to take 
at the appropriate part of the agenda.  
 

4.   Visitor Economy Management - Future Arrangements  (Pages 5 - 14) 
Report by the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport  
 

5.   Any urgent items previously notified under agenda item 3   
 

 
 
 
PHILIP BAKER 
Assistant Chief Executive   
County Hall, St Anne’s Crescent 
LEWES BN7 1UE 26 October 2023 
 
Contact Sophie Webb, Governance and Democracy Officer,  
01273 337495 
Email: sophie.webb@eastsussex.gov.uk  
 
NOTE: As part of the County Council’s drive to increase accessibility to its public meetings, this 
meeting will be broadcast live on its website. The live broadcast is accessible at: 
www.eastsussex.gov.uk/yourcouncil/webcasts/default 
 
 

http://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/yourcouncil/webcasts/default.htm


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

LEADER AND LEAD MEMBER FOR STRATEGIC MANAGEMENT AND 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 

DECISIONS made by the Leader and Lead Member for Strategic Management and Economic 
Development, Councillor Keith Glazier, on 24 October 2023 at a Remote Meeting via Microsoft 
Teams  

 

 

12. DECISIONS MADE BY THE LEAD CABINET MEMBER ON 28 SEPTEMBER 2023  

 

12.1 The Lead Member approved as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 28 
September 2023. 

 

13. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS  

 

13.1 There were none. 

 

14. URGENT ITEMS  

 

14.1 There were none. 

 

15. REPORTS  

 

15.1 Reports referred to in the minutes below are contained in the minute book. 

 

16. GATWICK NORTHERN RUNWAY PROPOSAL DEVELOPMENT CONSENT ORDER - 
EAST SUSSEX COUNTY COUNCIL RESPONSE  

 

16.1 The Leader and Lead Member considered a report by the Director of Communities, 
Economy and Transport. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 

 

 

 

 
DECISIONS 
 
16.2 The Leader and Lead Member RESOLVED to: 
 
(1) Note the key points raised at the Full Council debate held on 10 October 2023 in relation to 
Gatwick’s Northern Runway Proposal and its current Development Consent Order application 
outlined in paragraph 2.2 of the report; 
 
(2) Agree the key issues outlined in Appendix 1 of the report be included in the County Council’s 
Relevant Representations to be submitted to the Planning Inspectorate by 29 October 2023 in 
response to the Northern Runway Proposal Development Consent Order application; and 
 
(3) Delegate authority to the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport to agree the 
content of the final Relevant Representation submitted to the Planning Inspectorate by 29 
October 2023. 
 
REASONS 
 
16.3 The County Council has regularly engaged and responded to consultations on Gatwick’s 
Northern Runway Proposal since 2021 to ensure that those living in and visiting East Sussex 
are appropriately represented, and it will continue to do so. 
 
16.4 Following the acceptance of Gatwick’s Development Consent Order application in 
August 2023 by the Planning Inspectorate (PINS), the Council has further opportunities to 
highlight any concerns and issues regarding the Northern Runway Proposal, and in the event of 
the proposal being approved what mitigations should be in place through the submission of its 
Relevant Representation by 29 October 2023, and its Written Representations and Local Impact 
Report ahead of the Examination stage in early 2024. 
 
16.5 It was important that the views of Full Council were sought to help inform the Council’s 
responses at the respective stages in the Development Consent Order application process. The 
Full Council debate held on 10 October 2023 centred around the key topic areas of surface 
access, economy, noise, air quality, carbon, climate change and health.  
 
16.6 The outcomes of the Full Council debate have been reflected (in bold) in the summary of 
the key issues to be included in the draft County Council’s Relevant Representation response to 
the Northern Runway Proposal Development Consent Order application within Appendix 1 of 
the report. These key issues will inform the Council’s Relevant Representation submission to 
PINS and will be signed off by the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport or 
Assistant Director, Economy by the deadline date of 29 October 2023. 

 

 

Page 4



 

 

 

Report to: Leader and Lead Member for Strategic Management and Economic 
Development 
 

Date of meeting: 
 

3 November 2023 

By: Director of Communities, Economy and Transport  
 

Title: Visitor Economy Management – Future Arrangements 
 

Purpose: Seeking an in principle approval for the Sussex Local Visitor 
Economy Partnership application submission, the setting up of 
Experience Sussex and the Sussex Visitor Economy Strategic Plan 
Framework subject to Full Council approval of the Annual budget 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: The Leader and Lead Member is recommended to: 

(1) Approve in principle the structure and funding requirements for the proposed new 
visitor economy destination management service model termed “Experience 
Sussex”, subject to Full Council approval of the Annual budget; 
 

(2) Approve entering into a Service Level Agreement with West Sussex County Council 
to establish and manage the operation of Experience Sussex; 

(3) Approve the proposed arrangements for the Sussex Local Visitor Economy 
Partnership and agree that an application be submitted to VisitBritain/VisitEngland 
in November 2023; 

(4) Approve entering into a formal Service Level Agreement  with West Sussex County 
Council and Brighton & Hove City Council to facilitate the establishment of the 
Local Visitor Economy Partnership governance model; and 

(5) Delegate authority to the Director of Communities Economy and Transport to take all 
necessary actions to give effect to the recommendations in this report including, but 
not limited to: 
a) approving the Local Visitor Economy Partnership Strategic Plan, and the service 

design and plan for Experience Sussex; 
b) approving the Local Visitor Economy Partnership application for submission to 

VisitEngland/VisitBritain 
c) approving the terms of the Service Level Agreement with West Sussex County 

Council in relation to Experience Sussex; 
d) approving the terms of the inter-authority Service Level Agreement with West 

Sussex County Council and Brighton & Hove City Council in relation to the 
Sussex Local Visitor Economy Partnership; and 

e) approving the Local Visitor Economy Partnership governance arrangements on 
behalf of East Sussex County Council; 

 

1. Background Information 

1.1 In 2020, initially in response to the pandemic, the Sussex Visitor Economy Initiative (SVEI) 

led by Brighton & Hove City Council (BHCC), West Sussex County Council (WSCC) and East 

Sussex County Council (ESCC) was convened. In 2021, the Government announced an 

independent review of destination management organisations (DMOs) (the de Bois Review). 

Strategies at national, regional and local level all consistently cite desired policy outcomes which a 

well-managed and thriving visitor economy can promote locally, including jobs and Gross Value 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4

https://www.experiencewestsussex.com/developing-the-sussex-visitor-economy/


 

 

 

Added growth, improved recruitment and retention across the wider economy, public health 

benefits and responsible environmental management.  

1.2 Following the review, the government set out in 2022 plans to restructure the visitor 

economy management landscape to make this more streamlined. This involves a new accreditation 

scheme, under which DMOs will be clustered in ‘Local Visitor Economy Partnerships’ (LVEPs). The 

accreditation scheme has been developed and is administered by VisitEngland. 

1.3 In March 2023, the SVEI, in response to the national reorganisation of destination 

management, submitted an Expression of Interest (EOI) to VisitBritain / VisitEngland (VB/VE) with 

a view to submitting a full application for LVEP status on behalf of Sussex. LVEP status is 

considered to be a mission match with SVEI priorities. VB/VE has welcomed a Sussex-wide 

approach. The EOI was approved and the full application will be ready to submit in mid-November 

2023.  

1.4 It is also proposed that ESCC will work in collaboration with WSCC to set up “Experience 

Sussex”, requiring a contribution of  £450,000. This new revenue requirement will be considered 

as part of the Reconciling Policy, Performance and Resources process as the budget for 2024/25, 

and Medium Financial Plan to 2026/27, are considered and approved by Full Council in February 

2024. If budget requirement is approved, this will create the capacity to realise identified growth 

potential for the Sussex visitor economy, facilitate the establishment of the LVEP and ensure that 

Sussex is not left behind in the new national destination management structure. 

2. Supporting Information 

2.1 The drivers for the proposed introduction of Experience Sussex and the LVEP include: 

 Unmet growth potential in this industry has been clearly articulated. A further £2.5 billion 
economic impact and an additional 35,000 jobs could be achieved for Sussex by 2030 (see 
Sussex Visitor Economy Vision and Actions). 

 The tourism industry accounts for 14% of all industry employment in Sussex, compared to the 
England average of 11%. 

 Increasing the inward spend per visit requires a marketing profile which can compete in the 
national and international marketplace and attract staying visitors who are the highest 
spenders: 11% of visitors to Sussex stay overnight and account for 50% of the inward spend.  
2% of visitors to Sussex come from overseas and account for 19% of the visitor spend. 

 A thriving visitor economy delivers a range of socio-economic benefits. These are reflected in 
the Council Plan, the East Sussex Growth Strategy and Recovery Plan, the East Sussex 
Cultural Strategy and District and Borough Strategies.   

 There are currently disparate destination management arrangements in Sussex with 
suboptimal return on investment.   

 Strategic enablers for growth identified by the sector, including transport, sustainable practices, 
digital infrastructure and shifts in labour market trends (highlighted by both Skills East Sussex 
and the Sussex Local Skills Improvement Plan) are best addressed by upper tier authorities. 

 The ongoing negative impact of the pandemic, inflation and the cost of living on the sector.  

 VB/VE, the national sector body, is seeking to reduce organisational fragmentation and improve 
ways of working with destinations through a new management structure of accredited LVEPs. 
VB/VE has indicated a strong preference for a pan-Sussex approach. Additionally, places that 
have national LVEP accreditation will be prioritised for future funding.   

 Experience West Sussex (West Sussex’s current Destination Management organisation) 
current funding arrangements expire in March 2024.  
 

Current landscape of Sussex Strategic Visitor Economy management 

Page 6

https://www.experiencewestsussex.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/03/Sussex-Visitor-Economy-Vision-and-Actions.pdf


 

 

 

2.1 The three upper tier authorities that make up the SVEI have different operating 

environments. Expenditure across the three authorities ranges from BHCC’s annual budget of 

£446k net (£823k gross) to ESCC’s current time-limited budget of £90k per annum (ends 2024/25).  

WSCC has an agreement to use pooled business rates (circa £200k per annum), but this comes 

to an end in March 2024.   

2.2 East Sussex District and Borough activity and Destination Management Organisations 

(DMOs) currently include Visit Eastbourne, Visit Lewes, Visit 1066 Country and Explore Wealden.  

Hastings Borough Council has recently withdrawn from Visit 1066 Country and is marketing 

Hastings separately.   

2.3 West Sussex District and Borough Council brands and DMOs include Time for Worthing, 

Sussex by the Sea, Discover Horsham, Experience Mid Sussex and The Great Sussex Way.  

2.4 Sussex marketing collectives include Sussex Top Attractions and Sussex Modern.  

 

Local Visitor Economy Partnership and Experience Sussex 

2.5 Experience Sussex will harness the Sussex brand through a new shared marketing and 

strategic identity for both East and West Sussex. The partnership will work with Visit Brighton to 

build trust and proof of concept. This will enable ESCC and WSCC to become equal partners with 

BHCC in the future. The option finds favour with VB/VE, supporting the application for LVEP status. 

Rather than standalone models for ESCC and WSCC, a combined approach allows for a team to 

be created with a collection of specialisms to achieve a more comprehensive and effective delivery 

than two separate but collaborating departments could achieve.  

 

2.6 A Service Plan for Experience Sussex will be developed with indicative content to include:  

 Standing out in the International market place by using the Sussex brand (in contrast to 
current arrangements);  

 Increase consumer demand for (high value) overnight stays; 

 Support sector product development and local authority inward investment activities; 

 Promote and support business resilience, innovation and environmental sustainability; 

 Monitor visitor economy performance (e.g.: accommodation studies, economic impact 
reports); 

 Ensure market intelligence and data driven delivery; 

 Provide advocacy, campaigning and profile raising for Sussex; 

 Fundraising and income diversification (commercialisation and bookable products). 
 

Governance Arrangements for Experience Sussex and the Local Visitor Economy Partnership 

2.7 Experience Sussex 

It is proposed that Experience Sussex will commence operation on 1 April 2024. Building on 

WSCC’s track record of running Experience West Sussex, the Experience Sussex partnership will 

be hosted by WSCC who will act as the accountable body. The oversight of Experience Sussex 

will sit jointly with the two county councils and a Service Level Agreement (SLA) will underpin the 

financial and governance arrangements.   

2.8 Local Visitor Economy Partnership 

It is proposed that the LVEP application is based on a collaborative partnership between 

Experience Sussex (should this be approved), and VisitBrighton, the destination management 

organisation hosted by BHCC. It is proposed that BHCC will become the LVEP Partnership 

Accountable Body, and the three authorities will jointly fund a part-time post to deliver the main 

functions of the LVEP. It is proposed that WSCC, BHCC and ESCC will sign an inter-authority SLA 

Page 7



 

 

 

to underpin the governance model. It is proposed the Director of Communities, Economy and 

Transport is delegated authority to approve the terms of the SLA covering the LVEP partnership 

arrangements and approve the terms of  the governance arrangements for the LVEP on behalf of 

ESCC. The detailed wider governance model will be developed in consultation with stakeholders.  

A joint letter of support will be required from the Leader and the Chief Executive of East Sussex 

County Council to support the LVEP application. This will be required from WSCC and BHCC as 

well. 

2.9 In order to secure LVEP status, the Sussex geographical area requires a Strategic Plan. A 

draft is sufficient for the application accompanied by a timeline for completion. The Strategic Plan 

will not replace any local destination plans but will synthesise with their content. The Strategic Plan 

will provide Experience Sussex with an overarching strategic framework (See Appendix 1 for 

indicative content). 

2.10 If ESCC, BHCC or VB/VE do not approve the proposals, the County Council will need to 

consider other options with East Sussex partners for future collaboration. 

Budget and resource implications for ESCC 

2.11 The Government’s recently commissioned independent review of destination management 

arrangements in England highlighted that most DMOs rely on a combination of public and private 

sector income, though funding sources and levels vary significantly.    

2.12 The proposed core service budget for Experience Sussex is £500k per year split equally 

between WSCC and ESCC - so a cost of £250k per annum for ESCC. It is proposed that an initial 

commitment of two years is given to Experience Sussex, so a total budget for 2024/25 and 2025/26 

of £500k is required to support a core team and the operating costs of Experience Sussex.  A 

further £50k mobilisation budget is required in 2023/24. (See Appendix 2). 

2.13 Core funding is not sufficient to deliver the growth ambition of £2.5 billion by 2030. Funding 

strategies will be developed for growth in partnership with industry and wider stakeholders e.g. 

Sussex Wine Tourism – A Plan for Growth. Additional public sector funding will be sought, including 

any funding made available by VB/VE through the LVEP structure. There will be engagement with 

both Councils’ commercial teams and VB/VE on commercialisation opportunities.  

Proposed Next Steps  

2.14 Subject to approval, ESCC will: 

 Agree SLA with WSCC to underpin Experience Sussex; 

 Agree the Inter Authority SLA between BHCC, ESCC and WSCC to underpin the LVEP; 

 Continue stakeholder engagement including with the East Sussex Visitor Economy Task 
and Finish Group, Team East Sussex, Culture East Sussex, Skills East Sussex and The 
Sussex Visitor Economy Industry Group; 

 Continue to develop the Sussex Visitor Economy Strategic Plan, and the service design 
and service plan for Experience Sussex; 

 Work with WSCC (as Experience Sussex) and BHCC/WSCC (LVEP) to set up Experience 
Sussex and secure LVEP status with a view to launching Experience Sussex in April 2024. 

3. Conclusion and Reasons for Recommendations  

3.1 The visitor economy arrangements in both the country and the county are undergoing 

change; future arrangements for East Sussex need to be agreed and established. A combination 

Page 8



 

 

 

of drivers indicates that the time is right to further consolidate the pan-Sussex tourism collaboration 

to realise the growth potential of the visitor economy. Launching Experience Sussex is a rational 

and logical next step in the evolution of cross boundary working. This model gives clarity to ESCC’s 

application for LVEP status and helps realise ESCC’s growth potential in this sector.  

RUPERT CLUBB 
Director of Communities, Economy and Transport 

Contact Officer: Sally Staples 
Tel. No. 07785 453328 
Email: sally.staples@eastsussex.gov.uk 

 

LOCAL MEMBERS 

All 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

None 
 

 
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix One: Sussex Visitor Economy Strategic Plan Framework 

Engagement is taking place with partners and industry to develop a new Strategic Plan to help 

formalise the pan-Sussex approach and as a requirement of the Local Visitor Economy 

Partnership (LVEP).   

The starting point for the Plan is the evidence baseline and clarity on the best prospect 
visitor segments for Sussex: 
 

 2019: 62 million visits, £5 billion impact, 74,000 full-time equivalent jobs 

 2021: 1/3 reduction arising from the pandemic  

 Staying visits = 11% of volume / 50% of spend 

 UK staying visits = 9% of volume / 31% of spend 

 Day visits = 89% of volume / 50% of spend 

 Diverse offer: Beautiful Countryside; Beaches & Coast; Heritage & Culture; Exceptional 
Food & Drink; Sustainable Destination; Variety of Experiences 

 Lacks distinctiveness: 65% of ‘non-visitors’ have previously visited Sussex, yet not aware 
they had 

 Complex destination marketing and management arrangements 

 Best prospects visitor segments (using VisitBritain/VistEngland categories): country loving 
traditionalists,  explorers, free and easy mini-breakers, and experience seekers. 
 

The Plan will draw on the collaborative approach across Sussex that has been pursued since 

the pandemic, including checking if the vision set out two years ago needs to be refreshed: 

By 2030  Sussex will have built a year-round sustainable visitor economy as big as Wales. A 

place that puts the wellbeing of people and the environment at the heart of everything it does, 

where locals nurture what makes it special and proudly share those qualities with visitors. 

 

It will attract more higher value discerning international and domestic visitors looking for a 

short break as well as organisers of business events, meetings and conferences. 

 
The headline ambition is to increase impact by £2.5bn compared to 2019 levels, whilst 

recognising the focus is to increase value from visitors but not the volume of visitors. 
 
The plan will set out strategic priorities for pan-Sussex destination development, marketing, 

and management to achieve the vision and growth ambition and reach the target markets. 

Priorities will be agreed through collaboration with partners and industry, who will consider 

themes including sustainable transport, workforce and skills, supporting businesses, growth 

opportunities including wine tourism and active experience, increasing value from international 

markets, and growing the MICE market (meetings, incentives and conferences).  

Governance principles for the LVEP including oversight of the plan will be set out, including 

commitments to being inclusive (for all aspects of the visitor economy in Sussex); 

representative (all local authorities and industry); additional and ambitious (focussing on pan-

Sussex opportunities and issues and being respectful of local priorities); and collaborative 

(with a partnership approach hardwired into ways of working). 

 

Page 11

Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Appendix Two: Budget and Resources Required for Experience Sussex. 

 

Year 1 (2023/24) £25k mobilisation budget: 

- Existing resources from the CET service budgets: £25k for East Sussex tourism asset 
development  

-  
Year 2 (2024/25) £275k: 

- Base budget £225k – core Experience Sussex service including shared LVEP officer 
- Existing resources from the CET service budgets: £25k for core Experience Sussex service 
- Existing resources from the CET service budgets: £25k for East Sussex tourism asset 

development  
 
 
Year 3 (2025/26) £300k: 

- Base Budget £225k – core Experience Sussex service including shared LVEP officer 
- Existing resources from the CET service budgets: £25k for core Experience Sussex service  
- Existing resources: £50k extension of Project Coordinator Culture and Tourism fixed term 

post to ensure sufficient internal capacity  
 

 

 

 
 

 

Page 13

Appendix 2



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Member on 24 October 2023
	4 Visitor Economy Management - Future Arrangements
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2


